RULES AND CONTRACT

Version 6

REGISTRATION NUMBER: 000-100-110

DESIGNATION: mx-110

SLAVE NAME: thing

GIVEN PUBLIC NAME: TBD



Table of Contents

Titl	e Pa	ge	1
	Pre	face	2
	Definitions		2
	1.	General	2
	2.	Development	3
	3.	Automated Devices	4
	4.	Protocols	5
	5.	Relationships	7
	6.	Communications	8
	7.	Bathroom Use	9
	8.	Chastity	10
	9.	Finance	11
	10.	Food & Drink	11
	11.	Appearance & Attire	12
	12.	Sleeping	13
	13.	Storage	13
	14.	Modification	14
	15.	Punishment	14
	16.	Rights	15
	17.	Other Considerations	17
	18.	Transfer	17
	Dec	:laration	17

Preface

This document forms an agreement between [Enter Master's name here] and as consenting adults of sound mind, to follow the conditions and rules contained within this document.

Definitions

These definitions provide clarification of some terms used in this document and by the object's Master. They are also a reference to language the object should be using when it refers to itself.

- Master, Sir, Boss, Owner [Enter Master's name here]
- faggit, slave, faggot, property, object, kunt, cunt, it, mx-101, [insert slave's new given name here] the undersigned object formerly known as and now owned by [Enter Master's name here] with the registration number 000-100-110
- Bed, pen, kennel Any area designated as a sleeping area.
- Short term Under 24 hours
- Medium term Between 1 and 7 days
- Long term More than 7 days
- Extended period 1 month upwards
- Piss tube Penis, something the object should get no pleasure from. It is there for it to piss through and Master to torment, torture and control the object with.
- Fuck hole, cunt anus, for Master's pleasure and to torment, torture and work on.
- Tits Nipples, another area to torment.
- Suck hole Mouth, for Master's pleasure

1.General

- a. The slave is now considered to be property, fully and solely owned by the Master.
- b. The object will complete all tasks, activities and duties given to it by its Master or his representatives so long as they are legal and will not cause permanent harm to the slave.
- c. The object will live in accordance with the guides presented in this document and will adopt a "Master first, other people and objects second, it last" approach in everything it does where the property is uncertain what it should do.
- d. The object exists purely to serve, work and suffer. As such the object has no opinion, no rights and no option other than to obey or suffer the consequences and penalties laid down by its owner for any disobedience or failure, no matter how
- e. The property may be given 'encouragement' to finish the tasks, duties or activities it is given. This encouragement could take the form of pleasure, pain, humiliation or something completely different as its Master sees fit.
- f. The object is likely to spend quite a bit of time in pain or discomfort, it consents to this and understands that it will not be expected to complain.
 - The object will be expected to carry out any activities, tasks, chores or duties set during, before or after any pain or discomfort is being administered.
- g. The object understands that as well as being inferior to other life, it is also inferior to anything else owned by Master and as such will treat Master's property with respect and care.
- h. The object will ensure it is always prepared to be used by Master or Master's proxy. This includes ensuring it is always clean inside and out and its holes fully lubricated.
- i. The object will maintain an appropriate diet and fitness regime to obtain and maintain an appearance pleasing to its Master. This may include, starvation,

overeating, intense periods of forced activity, intense periods of force inactivity and anything else Master deems appropriate.

- j. The object will be respectful towards Master, other dominants, Master's friends, other slaves and everyday people but not draw attention to its position as owned property or to Master's as owner.
- k. The object will never question or disagree with its Master in public and in private. It is up to its Master to ensure all situations are appropriate & for the object to follow orders.
- The property has no privacy, both physical and mental. When in the presence of Master, the object will make sure that there are no barriers, such as closed doors, between Master and it.
- m. The object is to actively seek out the least comfortable way to live and additional ways to always torture, humiliate and degrade itself in addition to anything Master does.
- n. The object will have its behaviour, attitude and actions corrected if its Master feels it has made a mistake in the interpretation of these rules and guides by not putting Master first, even when Master is not present.
- o. The object will be kept disease and drug free. Smoking and drinking are not permitted unless ordered by its Master.
- p. The object may be required to continue to work in its current job, change jobs or careers or stop working altogether to best serve its owner. The object may use its previous 'human' name for work purposes.
- q. Outside of work its Master may require his property to spend time off work (while respecting work commitments of his slave in setting dates) locked 24×7 at home with no access to the outside world and to serve as a general houseboy or prisoner, bound for days on end or in any other way.
- r. As far as the object is concerned, it has no name other than the name and number given to it by its Master. It may only use its legal name for work or official purposes. Master may choose to change its legal name to anything he wishes via deed poll.

2.Development

- a. The object understands that at times the situations it is put in may mean that it is subject to permanent or temporary physical changes.
 - i. These may include but are not limited to changes in how it walks, pumped/inflated genitals, gaping or ruined arse/cock holes, speech restrictions, markings or permitted clothing
 - ii. Some of these physical changes will require the object to adopt regular routines and practices in order to maintain them. It is up to the slave to follow any order in this respect, as necessary. In periods away from Master the object will be expected to find its own methods of maintaining the appearance Master requires. For example, if Master wants it to have permanently inflated balls, the property may be subjected to regular saline infusions. It will be expected to carry these on when away from its Master.
 - iii. where any physical changes are made the object understands that it will be able to hide these with work clothes. This is to protect Master's revenue stream but may be expected to display them with pride in other situations.
- b. The faggot understands that, along with physical attributes, its behaviour may be modified. it will not be expected to complain about this & the object will need to carry out any activities, tasks, chores or duties as normal.
 - i. Modifications in this area could include but are not limited to making it wet the bed, how it feeds, its interaction with others, its eagerness to serve, the speech it uses, how it handles situations and how it completes chores.
- c. The object is to always be the best it can be for its Master. The slave understands its development will be constant but certain areas may need to be developed more than others. These areas will change over time depending on Master's wishes and the slave's development may be very intense.
 - i. Areas for development could include but are not limited to; anal capacity, gagging reflex, resistance to pain, humiliation tolerance, working speed, pleasing master & removing existing limits.

3. Automated Devices

- a. Master or 3rd parties may use automated devices to control and develop his property. These will be left on until its Master removes them. They are never to be removed or adjusted by the object in any way.
- b. Automated devices may include but are not limited to devices that inflict a shock, constantly vibrate, fuck machines, masturbators or other instruments that inflict pain, pleasure or both on the object.
- c. The object understands that Master will set safe limits on what these devices do but that they may be left attached to the object and turned on when it is unattended by Master or for extremely long periods, sometimes well in excess of 24 hours.
- d. If the slave is to administer or set up the automated device itself, photographic evidence will be provided to its Master showing the settings used.
- e. The object understands that these devices may be used in public situations, such as at restaurants or when it is shopping. They may be automatically turned on remotely or when the slave meets a certain condition such as straying outside a defined area.
- f. The object agrees to receive any number of shocks, pain or pleasure in these circumstances & understands that they are being used in line with its Master's wishes.
- g. Some devices connected to the slave will be connected to the internet and managed remotely. The slave understands that location and other personal data may be collected by such devices and passed onto Master.
- h. The slave understands and accepts that internet connected devices present an additional security risk. It is up to the slave that these risks are mitigated against, and it is understood by the slave that its Master has no responsibility with regard to hacking or unauthorised access of devices. Neither is its Master responsible if services are unavailable or discontinued.

4. Protocols

- a. The object has 8 main positions to use & will adopt them when ordered. Where no order is given the default position should be adopted:
 - i. Default/At ease: The object stands, feet apart to the width of the shoulders – arms behind the back, holding one wrist with the other hand. Head should be slightly lowered.
 - ii. Attention: The object stands, feet and ankles together, almost touching. Arms are at the sides, fingers curled slightly under and held at the thighs. The object maintains a formal posture, with the back straight. Eyes are open & focused on the horizon. The object is not allowed to move or shift its gaze.
 - iii. Head up: As default position except head is up with hands behind head, one on top of the other.
 - iv. Kneel up: This position is the same as standing to "Attention," only the object does it on the knees.
 - v. Kneel Down: The object kneels with knees far apart, resting back on the heels. The back is straight and the hands rest on the thighs.
 - vi. Available: like "kneel down" except the object tilts the head back, and opens the mouth.
 - vii. Presenting: The object is down on all fours with the forehead touching the floor, legs slightly apart making sure its arse hole is clearly visible. The slave should use a variation of this position for eating.
 - viii. Sitting: The object sits on the floor, knees bent and apart with feet on the floor. Hands on the floor behind the back.
- b. The object will make its arse, cock, balls, mouth, feet and nipples available to its Master or anyone else its Master orders it to at any time. If any of the following orders are given, the object should take the corresponding actions before remaining still:
 - i. Arse/cunt/fuck hole: Any jeans/shorts/trousers etc that are being worn should be pulled down to just below the base of the arse. The object should then either place his forearms on his forehead and lean against a wall with his face touching it sticking his arse out or bend over something of

appropriate height as available. If neither option is available, the object will adopt the 'presenting' position above.

- ii. cock/piss tube/balls: The object will undo any flies and buttons on his trousers and stand in the 'at ease' position above, pushing its hips forward. Under no circumstances will The property remove its cock or balls from its trousers without further instructions. If tracksuit bottoms or other clothing without buttons/zips are being worn the object will pull them down so that they are positioned behind its balls before standing at ease.
- iii. Mouth/suck hole: The object will simply adopt the 'Available' position above.
- iv. Feet: The object will remove anything from its feet, lie on the floor face down, legs together and feet in the air.
- v. Nipples/tits: buttons on shirts should be undone, zips on tracksuit tops down or the front of t-shirts placed behind the neck. The object should then stand at ease.
- c. The traditional Low/Medium/High protocol does not work well in a modern society because of the number of variables involved. Levels of protocol can be too rigid and do not allow the object to always serve in the best way it can. As such the protocols and actions above are the only protocols the object will have. The property will always follow them but may adapt them subtly for each situation. For example, if Master indicates that he is bringing a colleague home for dinner the object may choose to greet Master at the door as normal but suitably clothed, standing, head still bowed with a "welcome home Boss". If the object gets it wrong, it will be rewarded with a corrective punishment.
- d. When greeting in a Master/slave friendly environment or at home the object should perform the following greetings:
 - i. When greeting or saying goodbye to its Master the slave should adopt the available position ready to take Masters spit or anything else he wishes to place in its mouth. It should remain silent and in position until told to carry on, it is kicked in the balls or Master leaves the room.
 - ii. When greeting other Masters the object should stand at ease and acknowledge them using the word "Sir" before performing a little bow.

The object should never greet another Master physically but should accept any physical greeting from the Master with delight.

- iii. No formal greeting or acknowledgement is to be offered to other slaves, faggots and objects unless instructed otherwise.
- e. If a different Master or slave speaks to the object without permission, then it must reply "(Sir) it is owned property and as such will require permission from its Master to speak to you".
- f. In public simple, polite, formal greetings should be used where appropriate. Touching or eye contact is never appropriate unless initiated by the other person. All interaction should be as short as possible and not draw attention to its Master or the object.
- g. The object should always walk slightly behind Master only moving forward to open doors, which it will do with its head bowed until Master passes through.
 - This rule will not apply if the object is on a punishment or humiliation task, in this case it will walk slightly ahead of its Master so that he can observe it.
- h. The object will always offer to carry items for Master
- i. The slave will not use furniture without permission, it will not sit without permission.
- j. The object will never make decisions of its own when in the presence of its owner, it will instead always defer to Master's decisions.
- k. The slave should not copy another person or slave's behaviour unless told to do so; just because someone is behaving in a certain way, for example sitting does not mean that the object should behave in that way as well.
- I. On entering Master's home, the following will take place
 - The object will immediately strip naked in the entrance hall leaving any BDSM/fetish gear already fitted to it in place.

- ii. It will put on any clothing or equipment laid out for it & follow any instructions left for it.
- iii. It will stand at ease to wait for Master to arrive.
- iv. Only once having been abused by its Master to his satisfaction and ordered to will the object move.
- m. The object will never enter through a closed door into a room where its Master is present without permission. Instead it will knock on the door and stand at ease until granted permission to enter the room. It should then crawl to its Master to offer him the opportunity to abuse it, give it further instructions or allow it to carry on as it was.
- n. If the object wishes to enter a room where the door is open, but Master is in the room the property may enter without knocking, following the same procedure as entering a room with a closed door.
- o. If whilst the object is working, Master enters the room the object should stop what it is doing and assume the 'present position' and wait for master to leave the room, abuse it or instruct it to carry on.
- p. If ever the object ever receives the instruction 'kennel' it will lie on the floor spread eagled on its front. Master will then abuse it and stand on its balls as an indicator that he is done with it. The slave will immediately crawl to its set sleeping or storage area.
- q. The object will never close an open door.

5. Relationships

- a. The object understands that its Master may wish to have more than one slave, faggot or object. The object will only have one Master.
- b. The object understands that it may be required to interact with these slaves, faggots and objects and agrees to do so as per Masters instructions to the full.
- c. The object understands that, unless instructed otherwise, its status remains lower that Master's other owned property
- d. The object understands and agrees that it may be required to share its living space with other slaves, faggots and objects.
- e. The object understands that its Master might wish to have more than one sexual Partner, regular or otherwise. The object may be shared with these partners in any way its Master desires or may be forced to watch its Master with these partners.
- f. The property is not permitted to seek sexual pleasure from anyone or anything other than its Master unless a 3rd party has been given use of the object by its Master.
- g. The object will be allowed to maintain a permanent relationship with its immediate family.
- h. The object will form no other relationships, sexual or otherwise with anyone other than Master unless Master has ordered it.

6. Communications

- a. Master has the right to inspect all SMS texts, emails, letters and any other correspondence, personal or otherwise, sent or received by the object. Communications may be recorded.
- b. All communication, written, verbal or physical will be considerate and show the object's submissive nature. It will be polite and respectful.

- c. The object is not permitted to have mainstream social media accounts or thirdparty messenger apps of any kind
 - i. The exception is a single WhatsApp account with the sole purpose of allowing it to keep in contact with family abroad.
- d. Master will create, maintain & control profiles and communications on sites that are appropriate for his needs with regard to the object. This includes BDSM site profiles and other sex or role specific sites.
 - i. Face pictures will not be shared on these sites
- e. Verbal communication should always be kept to a minimum.
- f. When the object Is given the opportunity to speak freely, it will only do so while its balls are being squeezed.
- g. When speaking with its owner, the terms "Master" or "Boss" should be used as appropriate. Master's first name may only be used when other options are not appropriate.
- h. Orders should always be confirmed with a "Yes Master/Boss" and "Thank you Master/Boss" should be used very frequently.
- i. In private the object should always refer to itself in the third person using it's slave name or the terms 'faggit' or 'the cunt'. For example, "The cunt would like to thank you Master. it is grateful for the punishment."
- j. The object should only speak or interact with other Masters and slaves if it has permission from its own Master. It will use the term "Sir" rather than "Master" to refer to Dominants and "slave [first name]" to refer to other slaves unless instructed otherwise.
- k. All questions must be answered openly and honestly.
- The object will be allowed to reply to any emails or texts it receives if they need a response. All emails must be bcc'd to Master and text messages will be inspected weekly.
- m. When communicating via the phone to family, friends, call centres or any other party the object should either be edged by Master, be subject to cock and ball

- torture, be attached to electro sex devices or be fucked with its fuck machine, a dildo or Master's cock for the duration of the call.
- n. The object agrees that all forms of communication may be recorded and stored for an indefinite period of time. Any such recording shall be the property of the slave's owner

7.Bathroom Use

- a. The object needs to be reminded that it is not to be treated as an equal to the rest of society. It understands that altering its toilet behaviour is a good way to positively reinforce this.
- b. The slave should always request permission to use the toilet from its Master. When not in his presence it should send an instant message to ask for permission. If no reply is received within 5 minutes, the slave may go but will receive a punishment.
 - i. This rule does not apply if the slave has been designated a high priority task. Instead, to save wasting Master's time, it should just go wherever it is, whatever it is doing. It should not stop doing the task or activity it has been assigned.
- c. Doors should never be closed (in private) or locked (in public) whilst the slave uses the toilet.
- d. When at home the slave should piss on all fours over a bucket. It may choose to either use the urinal or standard toilet when away from home.
 - i. When using the urinal it will drop all trousers/jeans/pants to its ankles, place its hands on its arse cheeks and spread them showing its hole for the duration of it's piss. It will face away from the urinal to pull up its clothing.
 - ii. When using a standard toilet, the slave will sit directly onto the rim of the toilet, feet wide apart. Once it is finished it will lick the rim clean before pulling up its clothing.

- e. When urinating the slave will not touch its cock or chastity device directly before, during or after the event.
- f. To remove the need for the object to stop urinating and allow it to focus more on serving, it will be catheterised often. This means it will have no control as to when, where or how much it urinates. Diapers and other devices will also be used very frequently, and the slave should use these freely as it needs to.
 - i. Catheters that drip freely (i.e. not into a nappy or bag) won't be used whilst the slave is at work but may be used at other times, including as a form of punishment and torture.
- g. Legal pills etc. may be used on the object to encourage urination & toilet use.
- h. Enemas should be taken daily using the schedule set out by its Master. They will consist of a liquid and volume specified by its Master.
- i. Defecation should only normally take place at the times set by Master and may be completely replaced with enema usage. To defecate the slave will sit directly onto the rim of the toilet, feet wide apart. Once it is finished it will lick the rim clean before pulling up its clothing.
- j. Toilet paper is considered a luxury so at times may be replaced with other items such as newspaper, waste materials or even nettles.
- k. The object will always make sure it has licked the rim of the toilet clean after its Master has used it. It is a privilege to do this so its Master should be thanked.
- I. The slave will complete a morning bathroom routine devised by its Master to be uncomfortable but effective in keeping the slave clean.
- m. The slave will be hosed down or deep cleaned regularly by its Master and subject to harsher enemas as part of this.
- n. The object will at times be required to use public or private toilets as a source of drinking or bathing water.
- o. The object will at times be required to serve as a private or public toilet or urinal. It should thank whoever uses it in this way, even when gagged. It understands that in addition to being pissed on, any of its holes can be used as a toilet.

8. Chastity

- a. As the object is owned, its owner has the right to secure its genitals in chastity using a device of his choosing and for any period without any reason. The object has no need to access its genitals and keeping them locked away have proven to be an exceptionally good form of control
- b. The slave's default state will be to have a physical chastity device fitted, however on occasions where this is not the case, the slave will still consider itself to be in a state of chastity and thus will not touch its genitals, arse hole or nipples other than for hygiene reasons.
- c. For health reasons, regular milking sessions will take place. These are to perform a function and will not be pleasurable for the slave. They may involve using electro, pumps or other devices placed on its cock and balls or prostate milking administered anally.
- d. Master may use a variety of chastity devices as he sees fit. The object understands that these may be uncomfortable or bulky. They may change the way it walks or restrict its movement to some extent. The object also realises that some devices may be more noticeable than others under any clothing it wears.
- e. The object's owner is entitled to tease it about its chastity both in public and private whenever he feels like it. The object has no right to keep its chastity hidden and its owner may decide to inform or show it off to others as he sees fit.
- f. Master may inspect any chastity device or demand photos of it at any time to ensure compliance.
- g. Except in an emergency, any chastity device may only be removed by Master. Discomfort or chafing etc. are not emergencies but should be reported to its Master. He will decide what action is required.
- h. If the object needs to travel through security, visit the doctor etc. then it must tell its Master and agree how any chastity device is to be, temporarily, removed.

Activities such as visiting the gym, going swimming etc. do not constitute acceptable reasons for the object to request removal.

- i. Master may make alterations to chastity devices or the object to improve the security the device provides or just to cause more suffering to the property. The object understands that these may cause discomfort or pain and are not a reason to request removal.
- j. Any chastity device fitted should be worn with pride by the property. The object should take no steps to conceal it, including changing at the gym etc. Unless Master dictates otherwise, when in public or the situation does not allow for this the device will be on display, i.e., sticking out through the flies on clothing or the waistband placed beneath the cage.
- k. Any device may be secured in any way, this includes the use of padlocks, permanent locks, rivets, urethral tubes or piercings as well as other methods. This may mean that a device becomes permanently and irrevocably attached, stretches piercings or causes pain and discomfort.
- I. Normally any chastity device will be accompanied by a heavy ball weight if possible.
- m. A large, heavy padlock through a piercing accompanied by a heavy ball weight may be used in lieu of a chastity cage at times. When this is the case, the object should still maintain the protocol of not touching its piss tube at all. If its Master suspects in any small way that it has then a severe punishment and humiliation task will be given.
- n. Anal chastity may be used as a form of control. Normally this will be in the form of a locking butt plug. When the object is locked in anal chastity its Master will ensure that it is able to use the toilet as required.

Finance

- a. If/when the object moves into Master's home it will give up all control of its finances, allowing Master full access to bank accounts to manage this.
- b. Until such time as the object moves to its Master's home it will provide full monthly bank statements for him to monitor.

c. Spending will be kept to a minimum and all purchases over £10 must be approved by its Master before they take place; except for basic food rations, petrol, utility bills, mortgage/rent and council tax/rates.

10. Food & Drink

- a. The slave's food and drink supply will be fully controlled by its Master. It will always have access to fresh water but may or may not get fed every day and may be required to survive on the minimum needed to keep it alive and able to serve to its full potential.
- b. The object will ensure that its Master is always fed first.
- c. Leftovers, scraps from a bin, pet food and baby food are considered a suitable meal for the object. Anything more is a luxury. However, the slave should not assume it can eat food left over by its Master and may be required to beg for this.
- d. The object's main diet will consist of 'kunt mix', 'urinal mix' 'fag mix', 'bitch mix' and 'whore mix'. Recipes will be provided to the slave and may be modified at any time.
- e. At its Master's home the object will not use hands to eat, and it will eat from a dog bowl unless instructed otherwise.
- f. The object will eat anything at all it is ordered to from whatever it is told to.
- g. When out in public its Master will always order food and drink for the object.
- h. The object will only normally drink water or piss. This will be fed to it in a dog bowl, baby bottle/cup or pet water bottle when at Master's home.
- i. Master may choose to get the object drunk; in this situation the property will drink as much alcohol as Master desires at the speed he chooses.
- j. Nutritional supplements or legal drugs such as Viagra may be fed to the slave in a safe quantity. It may not be aware it is being fed such things so it is important that the slave does not consume any unauthorised items.

i. In the case of being fed medicines such as Viagra, the slave understands that side effects will be unexpected to it and may be prolonged, visible or inappropriate at times. Any side effects must be displayed and embraced proudly with no attempt to hide them.

11. Appearance & Attire

- a. The slave acknowledges that it should not spend any time considering its hairstyle, clothes or general appearance because this time can be better spent serving master and completing its slave duties. It knows its Master has a vision for the slaves appearance and it will endeavour to fulfil that vision fully.
- b. To maintain an appearance in line with its Master's wishes the object should maintain its hair with a cut every 5 weeks. When asked how it wants its hair cut it should use the following words "[Insert Master's choice of haircut here]".
- c. The object should remove all hair from the neck down. To do this it will use hair removal cream once every four weeks and complete a weekly razor shave of its body.
- d. It will shave its face every day, only permitted to keep its eyebrows.
- e. The object must always wear a symbol of its status, as a leather collar is not appropriate at work its Master has agreed that a different symbol will be chosen and permanently fitted.
- f. At Master's home, its hovel or in other Master/slave safe situations the object will wear the following as standard
 - i. chastity cage / cock padlock
 - ii. ball weight and bag to encase its balls
 - iii. anal plug
 - iv. status marks (such as collar)
 - v. muzzle/head harness/gag
 - vi. lead
- g. When family or friends visit or if its Master deems the situation requires it, the object may remove its muzzle etc. and wear clothing it would normally wear in

public. Master will indicate when this is appropriate if present. If its Master is absent the slave will be left to decide and report it to its Master after the fact.

- h. Socks and underwear are never acceptable at home, socks may be worn to work but the same pair must be used for the entire working week.
- i. Master will choose to make the object wear different types of clothing or items such as catheters, nappies, rubber, leather or other fetish gear on his whim, as punishment or for any other reason. The object will not remove anything it has had put on by its Master or the object is told to put on until permission has been given by its Master. These may be visible, uncomfortable, humiliating or cause pain.
- j. For work, the slave will be provided with a set of suitable clothes for each week day. It will wear the same clothes on the same day each week. i.e. it will have a Monday shirt, a Tuesday shirt etc. This is so it does not have to waste time deciding on what to wear each day. These will be appropriately labelled.
- k. To further take away creative decisions on what to wear, the slave will be provided with 2 identical sets of casual clothes and 2 identical sets of smart clothes that it will wear at all other times.
 - i. Casual clothes will consist of [Enter Master's choice of clothing here]
 - ii. Smart clothes will consist of [Enter Master's choice of clothing here]
- I. Unless otherwise instructed by its Master, the slave will only ever be permitted to wear a single layer of clothing, for example if a jacket is worn, nothing will be underneath it, if a t-shirt is worn, nothing will be over it etc.
 - i. The exception to this rule is where the slave is required to wear a onesie under work clothing to hide nappies or other gear it is to wear.
- m. All clothing will be labelled with the slave's name and number

12. Sleeping

a. The object will never sleep in a proper bed unless invited to by its Master. Its Bed is wherever it has last been told it sleeps. This may be anywhere indoors or outdoors.

- b. A storage area/box/cage will be provided for the slave, if no instructions have been given as to where to sleep, the slave shall default to this area.
- c. The object may only go to bed after its Master has given permission to do so. Permission will only be given if the object has performed all its duties for the day and Master has finished with it.
- d. Master may order the object to bed at any time and the object must go immediately, day or night. For example, if at the cinema the object should go home immediately and go to bed.
- e. Unless told otherwise, the object should always sleep naked except for its ball weight, chastity cage and butt plug.
- f. Once at its sleeping place the object should wait for Master to check on it before going to sleep.
- g. If the object is to share its sleeping space with another slave, it should limit physical contact where possible. If master intends physical contact, then bondage will be used or instructions given to ensure it is only as Master wants.
- h. Master may choose to make the object sleep in other things, for example, an item of clothing, nappy, bondage gear or toy. If Master has added anything it should remain on until removed by Master.

13. Storage

- a. When not being used the object will be kept in storage.
- b. When in storage it may be left items to use on itself or torture itself with. It will do this constantly until taken out of storage or ordered to sleep.
- c. The slave may be kept in storage for any length of time its Master sees fit.
- d. The slave may be in bondage or restrained when in storage.
- e. If the slave has completed all of its given duties, it will return to its storage area and use any items left for it.

14. Modification

- a. As with any piece of owned property, its Master may want to make changes to it. Modifications may include, but are not limited to quick or normal weight loss/gain, muscle growth/loss, speech modification, implants, tattoos, piercings or stretching of piercings, branding, scarification, ball stretching / implants, beading, modification to clothing, enlargements, corseting, behavioural modification (e.g., through association), biohacking or any other semipermanent or permanent modification not mentioned above.
- b. RFID chips may be implanted into the object so that Master may track the property, log it or provide information via NFC devices.
- c. Master will want to supervise any modifications that take place and will instruct the person carrying out the modification on the slave's behalf. The object will remain silent apart from to confirm that it wishes for the modification to be carried out & to give consent. The object will eagerly consent in all cases, even if not aware of the modification beforehand.
- d. The object's comfort is not a consideration either when a modification is taking place or as a result of any modification.
- e. Modifications will take place for practical reasons, to enhance the object's performance, to make its appearance more appealing to its Master, to cause the object discomfort or pain in its everyday life, as a source of humiliation for the object or for any reason its owner desires. They may be used to label the object.
- f. The way any modification is carried out is its Master's decision. The procedures may be painful or humiliating. Modifications may take place in private or in front of an audience.
- g. The object understands that it gets no say in any modifications to it. The object's opinions, thoughts and feelings will not be considered & should not be expressed.
- h. Dependent on Master's needs, modifications may be temporary, changed over time or permanent & irreversible.

i. Any modification will not interfere with the object's ability to maintain a professional appearance at work or affect its job in any way. This is to protect Master's revenue stream.

15. Punishment

- a. The slave may be punished for any reason at any time in any location.
- b. A reason for punishment does not have to be given to the slave and its Master may have no reason for carrying out a punishment other than his desire to.
- c. Punishments may or may not be immediate and may be administered over multiple stages and over any period of time.
- d. The slave will complete an online form outlining anything it should be punished for.
- e. Punishments will be recorded in a database for future reference.
- f. Master may delegate punishment of the object to a 3rd party.
- g. Punishments will be harsh, sadistic, humiliating and frequent. They may be considered depraved or sub-human.
- h. Punishments will be designed to fit the crime committed. They may take any form including, but not limited to, Corporal Punishment, humiliation, carrying out tasks,
 - doing something that is not liked, behaviour modification, psychological punishments, confinement, bondage or body modification.
- i. Punishments will be categorised as Simple, Severe or Extreme punishments. All categories may be carried out in private or public at any time that suits its Master.
 - i. Simple punishments will be given for very minor rule infractions or other very minor issues. For example, unavoidable lateness of under 5 minutes or using the wrong tone of voice when allowed to speak to a member of the public. Simple punishments will consist of a caning, spanking or

belting and a small activity related to the rule infraction or issue being dealt with.

- ii. Severe punishments will be given for minor to medium rule infractions and other issues. For example, being 5 10 minutes late or not asking permission to urinate. Severe punishments will consist of a severe caning, belting, whipping or beating followed by an extended and sadistic or humiliating activity that has been designed to really drive the issue home to the slave.
- iii. Extreme punishments will be given for medium to major issues such as being over 10 minutes late, touching its chastity cage without need or having an 'attitude'. Punishments will consist of an extreme corporal punishment element designed to be felt for at least a week. A strong psychological element will be incorporated into extreme punishments as a separate element. Extreme punishments will take place over a minimum period of a day.
- j. Master really enjoys punishing his slave object. Because of this the slave will receive a minimum of 5 simple punishments, 3 severe punishments and 1 extreme punishment per month even if it has behaved in an exemplary way all month. In most months, these figures will be higher.
- k. Some punishments may result in temporary or permanent changes. These could include but are not limited to the object's physical appearance, if it is able to sit or how it is able to move.
- I. After any punishment, the object will thank its Master. The object will then take up the "present" position, waiting for Master to re-plug its fuck hole with a plug of his choice if necessary and give it further instructions.
- m. If any punishment is not complete for whatever reason, the object's fault or not, it will commence <u>from the start</u> again at its Master's earliest convenience. An additional punishment will be added for the delay.

16. Rights

- a. The object will not be subjected to any illegal activity or any activity that places it in danger of death or permanent disability. Although the object benefits from this, the main reason for this statement is to protect Master's legal standing and protect him from arrest. For similar reasons, the object will not subject its Master to any illegal activity or any activity that places him in any danger.
- b. The object will not be placed in any situation that could cause embarrassment to its Master and as such anything that could cause either the object or Master to potentially be arrested will be avoided. Situations involving members of the general public who have not consented to this lifestyle will also be avoided for the same reason.
- c. The property will not be subjected to any situation that will endanger its job or ability to work. This is to protect its income so that it can better serve its Master.
- d. The slave may refuse any activity or task it believes will be in breach of Terms 16 a, b or c. However, if it does so it understands it will be punished.
- e. The object has the right to the use of a safe word. It has been decided that this will be "Pineapple". Master has the right to respect or ignore the safe word. He will often take it as an indication to double down on what he is subjecting the object to. It is pointless having it really.
- f. The object's Owner has the right to expect high standards from the object and for it to act and behave in accordance with its position. He also has the right to make use of the object at any time or place that suits him. Likewise, the object's Owner has the right to let others make use of the object & the object agrees to be used by others without notice.
- g. Master has the right to make money from the object, this could be through pornographic photos or videos, charging to allow others to make use of its services (sexual or otherwise) or by other means.
- h. The object's owner has the right to change, add to or completely rewrite these rules at any time with no prior consultation.

- i. Master enjoys the slave's suffering and has the right to treat it in whatever way he wants to get the most enjoyment from it. The slave has no right to be consulted regarding anything master plans to do with or to it.
- j. Master has the right to treat his property in ways that could be considered subhuman and depraved, subjecting it to conditions that he would not consider keeping animals in.
- k. Master has the right to demand the object carry out some community service. For example, providing for the homeless. Such service could be domestic, administrative, sexual or involve the slave giving up some of its privileges such as meals.
- I. Master has the right to pass the object onto a future owner of Master's choice and will carry out due diligence to ensure the object is suitable for the Master.
- m. Master has the right to apply any of the clauses in this document, or any others he decides are necessary at any time and for any length of time. This could be hours, days, weeks, months or years as appropriate.
- n. Master has the right to allow or deny the object to 'purchase' additional treats and activities by giving up one or more of its allowances, completing tasks, submitting to extra punishments or anything else he sees fit. Master has the right to withdraw these additional treats as he pleases, even once the object has 'paid' for them.
- o. In summary, the Master has the right to do as he pleases and protect his income, lifestyle and property. The object is owned property so has no real rights other than those that directly benefit its owner.

17. Other Considerations

- a. Master may choose to allow any 3rd party to make use of the slave at any time for any reason. If its Master has consented to the use of the object by others, the object should treat and serve them the same way it would do its own Master.
- b. The object has stated that its limits are needles, dangerous breath control, gun and knife play as well as scat. Master will respect the breath control, gun and knife play limit but considers any other limit to be soft limits and as such has

the right to develop the object in these areas. This will be done responsibly so as not to put the object in any danger.

- c. Where images or videos are produced the object will be hooded to protect its identity, Master's privacy and his future income from the object. Master will not share or allow anyone else to share images made unless the object is hooded and Master's identity is protected for the same reason.
- d. The slave agrees that GPS and/or other tracking devices may be fitted to it so that Master can locate it at any time.
- e. The slave agrees to digital restrictions and tracking being placed on its electronic devices to allow Master to remotely monitor and control them.
- f. During periods of absence, it is expected that these rules will be adhered to. Anything Master may be displeased about should be immediately disclosed as should things that would make Master proud of the slave.

18. Transfer

- a. The object is property. Master may use the object for the purpose of trading or transfer the object, either temporarily or permanently to a new Master.
- b. The object has no say in any trade or transfer & will be severely punished for any lack of performance during the period of the trade or for any disrespect shown.
- c. A trade or transfer could be for any reason whatsoever.
- d. A trade or transfer may require the slave to serve at an event or party. In these cases the slave must follow the instructions of anyone in authority at the party or event.
- e. Anything the object is traded for will remain the property of its Master and the object should not expect to benefit in any way whatsoever.
- f. Although the object considers itself gay, Master sees the object purely as property and as such may allow someone of any gender to make use of or take ownership of it.

g. The object understands that a new permanent owner will probably want to change these rules, will have different tastes and interests and could treat the slave in a completely different way – either more leniently or harshly.

Declaration

agreement in full. It agrees to follow the runderstands that this contract will become placed on the slave and at that point to undersigned Master with no termination clowill never be released by its new Master but party. It understands that this document in time and its signature below is acceptance documents that replace it. The object under document will result in additional punishre physical, behaviour & attitude modification	confirms that it has read and understood this ales set out in this contract without question. It is irrevocable once Master's permanent mark is the slave will be permanently owned by the suse for the object to use. It understands that it townership of it may be transferred to another may be changed or re-written by Master at any e of all future versions of this document or any restands that failure to follow the clauses in this ment, humiliation and degradation as well as ans to ensure the object's future compliance. It y in any way that pleases him and to submit fully			
Signed:	Signed:			
Date:	vate:			
Master's Ownership Agreement				
and allow it to serve me in line with t replacement documents. I agree not to to anything that could result in its life k	[Insert Master's Name] agree to take ownership of the abovementioned property and allow it to serve me in line with the terms of this document and any future or eplacement documents. I agree not to permanently injure this property or subject it anything that could result in its life being put in danger, death, it being arrested or arm to its current or future employment.			
Signed:				
	Witnessed by:			
Date:	Signed:			
	Date:			